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Calvary Baptist is unusual for its design - it is essentially an almost 
square three-story box - and also for its designer. Russell Benton Bingham 
(1880*1966) served as both designing architect and building contractor* A 
Tuskegee Institute graduate with a certificate in architecture, he taught 
for a tine at Hampton Institute before moving to Boley (OK). Moving on to 
Oklahoma City, he taught building and mechanical arts at Douglass High School 
for a few years, then organized his own building firm. A member of Calvary, 
he served as Sunday School superintendent for more than 25 years and as 
trustee from 1918 until his death* Calvary, then, is remarkable architectur­ 
ally (as one of the few structures of its kind in this region) and unusual in 
that it was built and designed by and for Negroes*

Unusualness of Calvary*s design rests in part on its almost square central 
plan* The sanctuary rises two stories in height with bi-level seating on 
three sides wrapped around the choir and pulipt on the east wall* Ceiling 
feature and sanctuary focal point is a large arched cross in art glass* All 
classrooms and service areas are in the basement* Another notable aspect of 
its design is the strikingly symmetrical Walnut Street (west) facade with its 
English Tudor fenestration. The low arches are accentuated with the use of 
white stone against fed brick. The stained glass artwork is significant in 
that it contains what is believed to be the region's only use of a black 
central religious figure*

The name of the church - Calvary - is symbolically expressed in the 
principal window mullions and rails* The proportions of their design and 
the extent of their repetition unmistakably impress on the viewer the 
importance of the cross of crucifixion at Calvary. All of this is set in 
a facade with impressive flanking portals* The facade itself is crowned 
by three separate, low Oreco-Roman parapets, one in line with the central 
sanctuary beyond, the ones on either side terminating the roof structure 
of the foyer and stairwell leading to the balcony. $y design, the stair­ 
well's strong vertical emphasis, together with the separation of parapets, 
portrays the twin tower effect prevalent in classical architecture, although 
both stair well and sanctuary have the same roof height*
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Calvary Baptist Church's significance rests on More than age and size. 
And on more than unusual design and the fact its builder and designer was a 
black professional and church Member (cf* No 7). Although Calvary boasts it 
has never forgotten that its primary purpose is to "Save Souls" and promote 
the "Spread of the Qospel Throughout all Nations," it has also adhered closely 
to the Baptist tradition of serving the community in other than strictly re­ 
ligious areas. In black communities, especially in the South, this tradition 
is particularly strong and especially significant.

Because of the size and convenience of its facilities Calvary has always 
been the center of cultural activities in the city's Negro community* From 
1903 until 1931*, when Douglass High School's new building was opened, the 
Calvary sanctuary accommodated nearly all black Baccalaureate and Commencement 
programs. It hosted two meetings of the National Baptist Convention, served 
as meeting place for the National Federation of Colored Women's Club* On its 
platform have appeared such visiting celebrities as tenor Roland Hayes, edu­ 
cator Mary McCleod Bethune, labor leader Walter Reutfcer, politician Adam 
Clayton Powell, and civil rights leader Martin Luther King Jr.

In April 1938 Calvary pioneered a religious service innovation that has 
since been adopted by most of Oklahoma City 1 s leading churches. A lay speaker 
was allowed to give the annual message for Kappa Alpha Psi's Guide-Right 
Service* The message took the place of the regular morning sermon* a common 
practice now but one quite unusual forty years ago*

It is in the field of civil rights, however, that Calvary has left per­ 
haps its most significant mark on Oklahoma City and, indeed, on all of Okla­ 
homa. In 1957 Mrs. Clara Luper, a Dundee High School teacher and a National 
Association for the Advancement of Colored People youth advisor, wrote for 
her students a play based on the civil rights activities of Martin Luther 
King Jr* Following a performance at Calvary the cast of 26 young people 
was invited by an NAACP executive to present the work in New Tork. Host^ 
of the youths had never been out of Oklahoma before and thus ha*, in St. 
Louis, their first experience of eating at an integrated lunch counter. 
Back in «Jim Crow11 Oklahoma they determined to do what they could to bring 
similar integration to their home town. The sit-in movement in Oklahoma 
City had begun.
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Then called a "sitdown," the young people's demonstration on behalf 
of integrated eating facilities began August 19, 19£8, following a meet­ 
ing at Calvary* Free the church a dozen youths marched the few blocks 
to a modest lunch counter in a downtown drug store, where they took 
unoccupied chairs. When they were not served, they remained quiet and 
orderly* The demonstration marches became almost a daily ritual, moving 
to various downtwon restaurants and cafeterias as well as other food 
service spots in hotels and department stores, always under the watchful 
eye of Mrs. Luper and the NAACP Youth Council. For several years the 
marches nearly always began and ended at Calvary. In time the marchers 
were joined by white protestors and by mid-1961 more than 175> Oklahoma 
City restaurants had opened their doors to Negroes, Before long segre- 
ation in eating places in Oklahoma City had virtually disappeared. 
Throughout the struggle Calvary served as spiritual as well as physical 
base for the movement• Threats were made to bomb the building. More 
subtle threats were made to cancel its insurance. But the church was 
not intimidated. As its 85th anniversary directory puts it: "The congre­ 
gation kept the faith with these brave-young people. God gave the 
victory to all."

Calvary Baptist Church had its actual beginning in the decision of 
individual members of three Baptist congregations in Tennessee to move 
to newly opened Oklahoma Territory. On the second Sunday in October 
1890 they met in a 20 x UO-foot store building on the corner of 2nd and 
Hudson in Oklahoma City to organize the Second Street Baptist Church. 
Within a few months the group bought the building, moved it across the 
street and a half-block west, where the church remained until 1896. 
It became Saint Paul Baptist Church then, after moving onto Main Street. 
In 1900 the church merged with a much smaller Baptist congregation that 
had been founded in 1889, the year of statehood. Moving to 308 West 
California, it became Calvary Baptist Church. Here a new building was 
erected, for $3U,000, which served the growing congregation until the 
move was made to the new building being nominated herewith for National 
Register status.


